
​Board of Trustees Meeting​
​Orange County School of the Arts​

​Closed Session​​- OCSA Business Office​
​1107 N. Main Street​

​Conference Room​
​Santa Ana, CA 92701​

​Open Session​​- Center for the Arts​
​801 N. Main Street​

​Webb Theater - 1st Floor​
​Santa Ana, CA 92701​

​Regular Meeting Agenda​
​




​The Meeting Packet can be found at:​​bit.ly/Dec​​18Agenda_Packet​

1.  Call to Order

a.  Roll Call

b.  Adjourn to Closed Session

2.  Public Comment on Closed Session Agenda Items
 To  address  the  Board  to  make  a  public  comment  either  related  to  a  specific  board  closed
session  agenda i tem  as  a  courtesy  to  the  public,  OCSA  requests  that  speakers  complete  the
form l ocated  on  the  table  with  the  Board  Agendas  and  hand i t  to  the  recording  secretary  before
the meeting begins. All requests to address the Board are limited to three (3) minutes.

3.  Closed Session

a.  Legal Matters

i.  Conference with legal counsel:  Anticipated Litigation:  Government Code  sections
54954.5 (c) & 54956.9 (d) (2) & (e) (1)

b.  Student Matters

i.  Pending student discipline matters

c.  Personnel Matters

i.  Public employee discipline/dismissal/release/complaints/evaluation and
employment: Government Code section 54957.

4.  Call to Order for Open Session
a.  Roll Call
b.  Pledge of Allegiance

5.  Reportable Action from Closed Session
a.  Action taken on December 18, 2025

6.  Mission & Core Values
a.  Mission (who we are):

i.  We provide an unparalleled arts and academic education in a creative,
challenging, and nurturing environment to a diverse student body passionate
about the arts, preparing them to reach their highest potential.

1

http://bit.ly/Dec
http://bit.ly/Nov19Agenda_Packet


​b. ​Core Values (how we make decisions):
​i. ​Student growth and education comes first.
​ii. ​Commitment to excellence, innovation, professionalism, and integrity.
​iii. ​Commitment to fostering a nurturing environment of creativity, respect, and

​collaboration.
​iv. ​Commitment to life-long artistic and scholarly development.

​7. ​Governance
​a. ​Board Meeting Agenda Platform Transition ​G. Endelman

​8. ​Public Comment on Open Session Agenda Items and Other Items Within the Jurisdiction
​of the Board
​To address the Board to make a public comment either related to a specific open session board
​agenda item or a non-agenda item as a courtesy to the public, OCSA requests that speakers
​complete the form located on the table with the Board Agendas and hand it to the recording
​secretary before the meeting begins. All requests to address the Board are limited to three (3)
​minutes.

​9. ​Consent Agenda
​a. ​Approval of Minutes

​i. ​November 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting
​b. ​Schedule of Personnel Transactions - Monthly Staffing Update Report
​c. ​Standard Financial Reports
​d. ​Field Trips - None

​10. ​Student Report​​–​​None

​11. ​President & CEO’s Report​​– Update of School and Foundation​​Business ​T. Shaffer

​12. ​Administrator’s Report​​- None

​13. ​Public Hearing​​- None

​14. ​Committee Reports and Action Items
​a. ​Operations ​G. Endelman

​i. ​Information Item - OCSA Graduation Requirements Update
​ii. ​Action Item - Uniform Complaint Board Policy and Procedures - Second Read

​b. ​Finance -​​None

​15. ​Reports from the Board of Trustees on non-agendized items

​16. ​Next Trustee Meeting and Agenda
​A. ​Next Board Meeting - Wednesday, January 28, 2026
​B. ​Agenda Requests
​C. ​Meeting Adjourned

​Public records related to the public session agenda that are distributed to the Governing Board less than 72 hours before a regular​
​meeting may be inspected by the public at​​https://www.ocsarts.net/about-us/board-of-trustees​​In compliance with the Americans With
​Disabilities Act, please contact the Board secretary in advance of the meeting if you require accommodations.​ 2

https://www.ocsarts.net/about-us/board-of-trustees


Board of Trustees Meeting 
Orange County School of the Arts 

Orange County School of the Arts
November 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting 

Open Session Minutes 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Board Chair Humphreys at 4:16 pm 

A quorum was established with five board members present  

Public Comment on Closed Session Agenda Items   

No public comments were heard. 

Closed Session 

The board adjourned to Closed Session at 4:16 pm to discuss the following topics: 

i. Legal Matters
ii. Student Matters
iii. Personnel Matters

Assistant Principal of Student Supervision Abbe Levine joined the Closed Session meeting from 4:16 - 
4:50 pm 

Closed session was adjourned at 4:59 pm 

Call to Order for Open Session  
Chair Humphreys reconvened the Open Session meeting at 5:10 pm and roll call was taken.  The 
following Board, Executive Management and Administration Members were present: 

○ Board Chair Gay Humphreys
○ Board Secretary Jessica Herthel
○ Board Trustee Vince Foley
○ Board Trustee Natalie Odebunmi
○ Board Trustee Paul Satkin
○ President & CEO Teren Shaffer
○ COO Greg Endelman, Ed.D.
○ Assistant Principal of Arts, Maria Lazarova, DMA
○ Assistant Principal of Instruction Kim Lyons, Ph.D.

Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Board Chair Humphreys 

Reportable Action from Closed Session​
● Board Chair Humphreys reported on the following action taken at the October 30, 2025 Board

meeting:  With a  3 - 1 vote, the Board denied the request to adjust placement on the salary
schedule of employee number 301046.

● Board Chair Humphreys reported on the following action taken at the November 19, 2025
Board meeting: The Board unanimously approved the request for an extension of maternity
leave of employee number 500301835.

Mission & Core Values
The school’s mission and core values were read by President & CEO Teren Shaffer. 

3



Governance 
President & CEO Shaffer and the Board of Trustees welcomed recently appointed Trustee Natalie 
Odebunmi, read her biography, and recessed for a brief reception in her honor from 5:14 to 5:26 p.m.  

Public Comment on Open Session Agenda Items and Other Items Within the Jurisdiction of the 
Board 
One public comment was heard: 

● OCSA Teacher Jon Sprekelmeyer regarding health class and graduation requirements.

Consent Agenda 
With a motion made by Secretary Herthel, seconded by Trustee Foley, the Board unanimously approved 
the following Consent Agenda items: 

● Approval of Minutes - October 30, 2025
● Schedule of Personnel Transactions - Monthly Staffing Update Report
● Field Trips (4)
● 2026 EduAboard Agreement - Cultural Visit to OCSA Scheduled for March 23-27, 2026

Student Report 
Junior Class Representatives Elsie Kim and Amanda Muther presented highlights and upcoming 
activities, including Student Council initiatives to increase visibility through apparel, events, surveys, 
website enhancements, and social media outreach. 

President & CEO’s Report 
President and CEO Shaffer reported and update on the school and foundation business to include the 
following highlights, accolades, and achievements: 

● Student recognition: Lana Lee (IA ’25) was selected as a Bank of America Student Leader;
completed an eight-week internship; and was named one of four standout leaders among
300+ participants.

● Student performance opportunity: IMJ students participated in a master class and
performed with Grammy Award–winning trombonist Michael Dease; Yamaha served as
season sponsor.

● College showcase outcomes: BCD/CMD reported 27 dancers participated; 12 college
invitations to apply; and one AMDA scholarship offer.

● Alumni recognition: Mike Repper (IM ’08) received two Grammy Award nominations for work
with the National Philharmonic.

● Additional alumni achievements: Ryan Mitchell (PM ’18) appeared as a contestant on The
Voice; Jennifer Choi (VA ’24) won First Place in the 2025 Congressional Art Competition, with
her work to be displayed in the U.S. Capitol for one year.

Administrator’s Report 
Assistant Principals Lazarova and Lyons updated the Board of Trustees on the following recognition 
and programs: 

● Visual Arts teacher Nancy Alcala was selected as the California Charter Schools Association
2026 Hart Vision Regional Teacher of the Year and will be recognized at the CCSA
conference in February 2026; Ms. Alcala has been a member of the OCSA community since
2017.

● EdStudio, a teacher onboarding and professional learning program, was introduced. The
curriculum is being developed collaboratively by Teacher Stacie Cruz, Assistant Principal

4



Lyons, and conservatory directors. The initiative is intended to strengthen conservatory 
director and teacher professional development. 

Public Hearing 
The Sufficiency of Instructional Materials for the 2025-26 School Year Public Hearing was opened at 
6:00 pm, and closed at 6:01 pm; no public comments were heard. 

Committee Reports and Action Items​
Operations:​

i. Uniform Complaint Board Policy and Procedures - 1st Read
1. COO Endelman presented the updated Board policy as a first reading,

stating that comments and revisions are welcome prior to consideration
for approval at the December 18 Board meeting.

ii. Board Community Engagement Enhancements
1. COO Endelman reported that, in collaboration with the Foundation team,

the Board of Trustees webpages were enhanced with direct links to the
current Board agenda packet and Trustee member pages to further
engage the community; he further reported that additional enhancements
are forthcoming, including use of CSBA’s Gamut platform to streamline
access to Board-related information and materials.

iii. Adoption of Resolution Declaring Sufficiency of Instructional Materials
for the 2025-26 School Year

1. With a motion made by Trustee Satkin, seconded by Trustee Foley, the
board unanimously adopted the Resolution Declaring Sufficiency of
Instructional Materials for the 2025-26 School Year by a roll call vote.

Finance: 
i. Approval of 2025-26 Recast Budget

1. Trustee Satkin presented a summary of the November 6, 2025 Finance
Committee meeting, including upcoming items for consideration.

2. With a motion made by Trustee Satkin, seconded by Secretary Herthel,
the board unanimously approved the 2025-26 recast budget.

Reports from the Board of Trustees on non-agendized items 
● Trustee Odebunmi expressed appreciation to the Board of Trustees and the OCSA community

for the warm welcome following her appointment, and stated that OCSA supported her
children’s academic and artistic development and that she looks forward to giving back in her
role as Trustee.

● Trustee Satkin requested that a report on graduation requirements be presented at a future
Board meeting.

Next Trustee Meeting and Agenda 
Next Board Meeting - Thursday, December 18, 2025 

● A reminder of the next board meeting date was provided.
Agenda Requests 

● There were no agenda requests.
Meeting Adjourned 

● Chair Humphreys adjourned the meeting at 6:11 p.m.

5



POSITION & EMPLOYEE CHANGES ORANGE COUNTY SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

December 18, 2025

NEW HIRES

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION EFFECTIVE REPLACEMENT NEW ADDITIONAL SUPPORT REPLACEMENT FOR
Brayden Skoglund Community Engagement Community Engagement Asst 12/12/25

Rachel Steinke Foundation Family Giving Coordinator 12/15/2025

TERMINATIONS & RESIGNATIONS

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION EFFECTIVE REHIRE ELIGIBLE REHIRE ELIGIBLE REASON
Keira Gestel CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Joni Anderson CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Chloe Deutschman CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
John Finlay CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Renso Gomez Jimenez CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Alexander Chanel CSARts Academy HR Payroll Associate 11/21/2025 Yes No
Tatum Harkavy CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Grace Huynh CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Sakina Ibrahim CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Nathen McLaurin CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Manny Munoz CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Ardashes Najarian CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Dylan Panetta CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Daniel Sidoni CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Siena Stark CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Lauren Olivia Stiles CSARts Academy CSArts Support 11/17/2025 Yes No
Wikle Peter CSARts Academy Substitute Teacher 12/1/2025 Yes No
My Tran CSARts Academy CSArts Support 12/2/2025 Yes No
STATUS CHANGE

NAME FROM TO EFFECTIVE REPLACEMENT NEW RECLASSIFICATION REASON

OPEN POSITIONS

DEPARTMENT POSITION EFFECTIVE REPLACEMENT NEW ADDITIONAL SUPPORT ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Academics Long Term Substitute Teacher 12/1/2025

Academics Substitute Teacher 12/1/2025

Academics Intensive Individualized Service Para Edecator 12/1/2025

6



Orange County School of the Arts 
Income Statement
FY 2025-2026
(UNAUDITED)
As of OCTOBER 31, 2025

25-26 
Budget

Actual Budget $$ %

REVENUE

State Apportionment 7,405,658 7,405,658 0 29,853,360
Mandate Block Grant 0 0 0 113,824
Lottery Revenue (38,301) 0 (38,301) 642,096
El Dorado SELPA 748,678 748,678 0 2,712,048
Other State and Federal Rev 524,147 0 524,147 110,000
Prop 28 Funding (Arts & Music in Schools) 90,274 90,274 0 286,000
CYBHI Grant 120,967 120,967 (0) 135,000
SB 740 Facility Reimb (CY) 0 0 0 3,141,049
Parent Funding/ Other Donations 4,733,251 4,732,000 1,251 10,444,395
SGV Personnel Services Agreement 234,557 234,592 (35) 703,774
Ticket Sales/Prod Fees, Net (3,611) (3,611) 0 (100,000)

Student Activities, Net 177,260 177,260 0 50,000
Food Service, Net 133,142 133,000 142 425,000
Miscellaneous Income, Net 145,081 145,000 81 550,000

  TOTAL SCHOOL REVENUE 14,271,102 13,783,817 487,284 3.54% 49,066,546

Contributions from Found//Legacy (2,500) 0 (2,500) 1,000,000

  TOTAL REVENUE 14,268,602 13,783,817 484,784 3.52% 50,066,546

EXPENSES

Payroll/Retirement/ER Payroll Tax 8,701,248 8,700,000 (1,248) 27,656,759
Health Benefits/Opt Out Incentives 1,417,772 1,415,000 (2,772) 4,000,000
Special Education Payroll 895,620 896,000 380 2,727,915
Academics - Instructional Supp 212,393 210,000 (2,393) 557,000
Special Education Expense 41,321 41,000 (321) 75,000
CYBHI Grant Expenses 26,284 26,000 (284) 135,000
CTEIG Grant Expense 25-26 89,841 0 (89,841) 0
SWP Grant Expenses 125 0 (125) 0
GSPP Grant Expenses 1,523 1,000 (523) 40,250
A-G Grant Expense 294 0 (294) 47,759
Arts, Music & Instructional Materials Grant Expe 0 0 0 503,143
Learning Recovery Grant Expense 64,509 64,196 (313) 191,653
Arts - Instructional Supplies 251,282 248,000 (3,282) 735,000
Arts - Staff Development 52,889 50,500 (2,389) 185,000
General & Administrative 515,579 515,000 (579) 1,195,331
IT Services 224,726 214,000 (10,726) 642,000
Contract Services 127,669 109,604 (18,065) 328,810
Legal 366,760 340,000 (26,760) 750,000
Utilities 371,246 371,000 (246) 1,138,000
Insurance 197,262 156,400 (40,862) 469,200
Building Maint & Security 1,016,288 812,024 (204,264) 2,494,692
Facility Rent and Property Tax 1,628,152 1,644,984 16,832 4,431,813
Technical 14,096 18,000 3,904 75,000
Marketing 21,729 25,000 3,272 75,000

  TOTAL EXPENSES 16,238,606 15,857,708 (380,898) -2.40% 48,454,325

EBITDA (1,970,004) (2,073,891) 103,887 1,612,221

Interest 145,871 145,871 0 298,052
SAUSD Settlement 8,550,000 0 0 0
Depreciation/Amortization 309,620 309,620 0 0

Net Change in Assets (10,975,495) (2,529,382) 103,887 1,314,169

Var (Neg) PosYTD 

12/5/2025
Financial Statements OCSA 25-26 OCT

7



Orange County School of the Arts 
Income Statement by Month
FY 2025-2026
(UNAUDITED)
As of OCTOBER 31, 2025

YTD YTD Variance

Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25 Actual Budget (Neg) Pos

REVENUE
State Apportionment 558,888 1,191,685 3,883,198 1,771,887 7,405,658 7,405,658 0
Mandate Block Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Lottery Revenue 0 0 (38,301) 0 (38,301) 0 (38,301)
El Dorado SELPA 133,767 121,864 250,276 242,770 748,678 748,678 0
Other State and Federal Revenue 0 0 807 523,340 524,147 0 524,147
Prop 28 Funding (Arts & Music in Schools) 16,120 16,120 29,017 29,017 90,274 90,274 0
CTEIG 25-26 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CYBHI Grant 120,967 0 0 0 120,967 120,967 (0)
GSPP Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SB 740 Facility Reimb (CY) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parent Funding Contributions/Donations 1,821,000 1,191,188 759,681 961,382 4,733,251 4,732,000 1,251
SGV Personnel Services Agreement 58,639 58,639 58,639 58,639 234,557 234,592 (35)
Ticket Sales/Production Fees, Net (12,553) (16,551) (5,253) 30,745 (3,611) (3,611) 0
Student Activities, Net 84,949 22,315 29,640 40,355 177,260 177,260 0
Food Service, Net (2,481) 25,382 47,309 62,932 133,142 133,000 142
Miscellaneous Income, Net (3,796) 54,405 60,874 33,599 145,081 145,000 81

  TOTAL SCHOOL REVENUE 2,775,502 2,665,047 5,075,887 3,754,666 14,271,102 13,783,817 487,284

Contributions from Foundation 0 0 0 (2,500) (2,500) 0 (2,500)

  TOTAL REVENUE 2,775,502 2,665,047 5,075,887 3,752,166 14,268,602 13,783,817 484,784

EXPENSES
Payroll/Retirement/ER Payroll Tax 1,724,517 1,987,127 2,454,739 2,534,865 8,701,248 8,700,000 (1,248)
Health Benefits/Opt Out Incentives 300,351 397,729 241,731 477,960 1,417,772 1,415,000 (2,772)
Special Education Payroll 188,598 199,258 251,000 256,764 895,620 896,000 380
Academics - Instructional Supplies 52,078 35,261 69,454 55,601 212,393 210,000 (2,393)
Special Education Expense 4,946 11,332 13,619 11,423 41,321 41,000 (321)
CYBHI Grant Expenses 0 23,533 2,730 21 26,284 26,000 (284)
CTEIG Grant Expense 25-26 2,643 77,414 4,806 4,978 89,841 0 (89,841)
SWP Grant Expenses 0 0 125 0 125 0 (125)
GSPP Grant Expenses 200 1,167 0 156 1,523 1,000 (523)
A-G Grant Expense 0 0 0 294 294 0 (294)
Arts, Music & Instructional Materials Grant Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Learning Recovery Grant Expense 16,127 16,127 16,127 16,127 64,509 64,196 (313)
Arts - Instructional Supplies 76,774 71,743 53,272 49,493 251,282 248,000 (3,282)
Arts - Staff Development 1,179 6,846 18,510 26,354 52,889 50,500 (2,389)
General & Administrative 142,224 151,037 99,056 123,262 515,579 515,000 (579)
IT Services 52,000 60,804 56,357 55,565 224,726 214,000 (10,726)
Contract Services 19,856 36,549 22,969 48,294 127,669 109,604 (18,065)
Legal 108,572 78,607 72,502 107,078 366,760 340,000 (26,760)
Utilities 91,396 93,452 98,539 87,858 371,246 371,000 (246)
Insurance 38,000 38,000 38,000 83,262 197,262 156,400 (40,862)
Building Maintenance & Security 167,902 239,676 249,806 358,903 1,016,288 812,024 (204,264)
Facility Rent and Property Tax 407,038 407,038 407,038 407,038 1,628,152 1,644,984 16,832
Technical 2,159 3,803 4,114 4,020 14,096 18,000 3,904
Marketing 6,419 7,134 872 7,303 21,729 25,000 3,272

  TOTAL EXPENSES 3,402,981 3,943,638 4,175,366 4,716,621 16,238,606 15,857,708 (380,898)

EBITDA (627,480) (1,278,591) 900,521 (964,455) (1,970,004) (2,073,891) 103,887

Interest 39,002 (11,230) (2,012) 120,110 145,871 145,871 0
SAUSD Settlement 0 8,550,000 8,550,000 0 0
Depreciation/Amortization 72,340 78,608 77,822 80,850 309,620 309,620 0

Net Change in Assets (738,822) (9,895,969) 824,711 (1,165,415) (10,975,495) (2,529,382) 103,887

12/5/2025
Financial Statements OCSA 25-26 OCT

8



Orange County School of the Arts 
Balance Sheet
FY 2025-2026
(UNAUDITED)
As of OCTOBER 31, 2025

Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25
Assets

Cash - Operating 2,937,477 488,696 366,396 2,260,859 460,262
Cash - Restricted 5,534,092 5,548,909 476,299 504,423 474,283
Cash - Reserves 3,000,000 3,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Accounts Receivable 4,150,033 4,457,799 3,995,544 3,219,793 3,274,249
Net Fixed Assets 13,498,932 13,719,607 13,858,842 13,880,814 13,802,936
Prepaid Expenses 330,046 668,195 719,244 686,281 660,819
Deposits 81,720 80,040 88,049 89,799 86,052

Total Assets 29,532,300 27,963,246 21,504,374 23,641,969 21,758,601

Liabilities

Accounts Payable 1,006,815 760,308 782,184 890,522 1,576,013
Accrued Expense 4,458,010 3,840,098 3,905,038 4,308,766 3,580,229
Accrued Interest 470,685 517,175 513,102 513,827 638,920
Building Lease Payable 11,551,178 11,551,178 11,551,178 11,551,178 11,551,178
Notes Payable 5,409,129 5,409,129 8,830,000 8,830,000 8,830,000
Other Liabilities 66,491 66,491 (24) 800,069 69
Deferred Revenue 12,303 0 0 0 0

Total Liabilities 22,974,612 22,144,380 25,581,477 26,894,362 26,176,409
Prior Year Change in Assets 6,096,967 6,557,688 6,557,688 6,557,688 6,557,688
Current Year Change in Assets 460,720 (738,822) (10,634,791) (9,810,080) (10,975,495)

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 29,532,300 27,963,246 21,504,374 23,641,969 21,758,601

12/5/2025
Financial Statements OCSA 25-26 OCT

9



Orange County School of the Arts 
Statement of Cash Flows
FY 2025-2026

Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25

Change in Net Assets (738,822) (9,895,969) 824,711 (1,165,415)

Change in Accounts Receivable (307,766) 462,255 775,750 (54,455)
Change in Prepaid Assets (338,149) (51,049) 32,963 25,462
Change in Deposits 1,680 (8,010) (1,750) 3,747
Change in Accounts Payable (246,507) 21,875 108,338 685,491
Change in Accrued Expenses (571,422) 60,866 404,453 (603,444)
Change in Notes Payable 0 3,420,871 0 0
Change in Other Accrued Liabilities (12,303) (66,515) 800,093 (800,000)

Capital Expenditures/In-Kind (293,015) (217,843) (99,794) (2,973)
Deferred Financing 0 0 0 0
Depreciation & Amortization 72,340 78,608 77,822 80,850
Transfer of Assets to Legacy Fund 0 0 0 0

Net Cash from Operating Activities (2,433,964) (6,194,910) 2,922,587 (1,830,737)

Cash at Beginning of Period 11,471,569 9,037,605 2,842,695 5,765,282

Cash & Equivalents at the End of Period 9,037,605 2,842,695 5,765,282 3,934,545

12/5/2025
Financial Statements OCSA 25-26 OCT 10



ORANGE COUNTY SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

Uniform Complaint Procedures 

The Orange County School of the Arts (OCSA) has the primary responsibility to ensure 
compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 
programs and shall investigate complaints alleging noncompliance with such laws and 
regulations. OCSA encourages the early, informal resolution of complaints whenever possible 
and appropriate. In the event a complaint cannot be resolved informally, OCSA has adopted a 
uniform system of processing complaints in accordance with Title 5 California Code of 
Regulations Section 4621. OCSA’s uniform complaint policy shall be used to investigate and 
resolve the following complaints: 

1. Any complaint alleging OCSA violation of applicable state or federal law or
regulations governing adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant 
education, career technical and technical education and training programs, child care and 
development programs, child nutrition programs, special education programs, and pupil fees. (5 
CCR Section 4610; Education Code Section 49010-49013). 

2. Any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying
in OCSA programs and activities against any person based on race, color, ancestry, national 
origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, or physical or mental 
disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression; the perception of one or 
more of such characteristics; or association with a person or a group with one or more of these 
actual or perceived characteristics. (5 CCR Section 4610). 

3. Any complaint alleging OCSA noncompliance with the requirement to provide
reasonable accommodation to a lactating student on school campus to express breast milk, 
breastfeed an infant child, or address other breastfeeding-related needs of the student. (Education 
Code Section 222). 

4. Any complaint alleging that OCSA has not complied with legal requirements related to
the implementation of the local control and accountability plan. (Education Code Section 52075). 

5. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the
complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy. 
(5 CCR Section 4621). 

6. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth alleging OCSA
noncompliance with Education Code Section 48850 subdivision (a)(3)(A). 

Complaints regarding allegations of conduct violation of applicable state and federal law and 
regulations may be submitted in writing to any OCSA management employee, or directed to the 
OCSA Dean of Facilities and Supervision, OCSA’s Compliance Officer, who shall investigate 

Page | 1  
Uniform Complaint Procedure 
August 26, 2016 

11



the complaint and respond to complainant. OCSA will maintain the confidentiality of the parties 
involved to the extent possible during the investigation process.  Contact Information:  

OCSA Assistant Principal of Student Supervision 
1010 North Main Street, Santa Ana, CA 92701 

714.560.0900 ext. 6402 
abbe.levine@ocsarts.net 

Complaints are to be submitted in writing to the Compliance Officer. The OCSA Executive 
Director shall ensure the Compliance Officer is knowledgeable about the laws and programs that 
he/she is assigned to investigate. Any complaint filed against or implicating the Compliance 
Officer may be filed with the OCSA Executive Director. 

In investigating the complaints, the confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as 
required by law. Alternative dispute resolution, such as mediation, may be offered to resolve 
complaints as deemed appropriate by the Compliance Officer.  

OCSA prohibits retaliation against anyone who files a complaint or anyone who participates in 
the complaint investigation process. (5 CCR Section 4621). 

Complainants are advised that civil law remedies under state or federal discrimination, 
harassment, intimidation or bullying laws, including but not limited to injunctions, restraining 
orders, or other remedies or orders, may also be available to them. 

When an allegation that is not subject to the uniform complaint procedure is improperly 
submitted as a UCP complaint, the complainant shall be referred to the appropriate OCSA staff 
or outside agency. 

OCSA shall complete its investigation and issue a written decision within sixty (60) calendar 
days from the date of the Compliance Officer’s receipt of the complaint, unless the parties agree 
in writing to an extension of the timeline. 

A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying must be 
filed within six (6) months from the date the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying occurred, or knowledge of the facts of it were first obtained. The OCSA Executive 
Director or designee may extend the timeline up to an additional ninety (90) days for good cause 
upon written request of the complainant. A pupil fee complaint shall be filed no later than one 
year from the date the alleged violation occurred.  

Copies of OCSA’s Uniform Complaint Procedures are available free of charge.   

Page | 2  
Uniform Complaint Procedure 
August 26, 2016 

12

mailto:Abbe.levine@ocsarts.net


​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​U​​NIFORM​ ​C​​OMPLAINT​​P​​OLICY​ ​AND​​P​​ROCEDURES

​Orange​ ​County​ ​School​ ​of​ ​the​ ​Arts​ ​(“OCSA”)​ ​complies​ ​with​ ​applicable​ ​federal​ ​and​ ​state​ ​laws​ ​and​
​regulations.​​OCSA​​is​​the​​local​​agency​​primarily​​responsible​​for​​compliance​​with​​federal​​and​​state​​laws​​and​
​regulations​ ​governing​ ​educational​ ​programs.​ ​Pursuant​ ​to​ ​this​ ​policy,​ ​persons​ ​responsible​ ​for​ ​compliance​
​and/or​ ​conducting​ ​investigations​ ​shall​ ​be​ ​knowledgeable​ ​about​ ​the​ ​laws​ ​and​ ​programs​ ​which​ ​they​ ​are​
​assigned to investigate.​

​Scope​

​This​ ​complaint​ ​procedure​ ​is​​adopted​​to​​provide​​a​​uniform​​system​​of​​complaint​​processing​​(“UCP”)​​for​​the​
​following types of complaints:​

​1. ​Complaints​ ​alleging​ ​unlawful​ ​discrimination,​ ​harassment,​ ​intimidation​ ​or​ ​bullying​ ​against​ ​any
​protected​​group​​on​​the​​basis​​of​​the​​actual​​or​​perceived​​characteristics​​of​​age,​​ancestry,​​color,​​mental
​disability,​ ​physical​ ​disability,​ ​ethnic​ ​group​ ​identification,​ ​immigration​ ​status,​ ​citizenship,​ ​gender
​expression,​​gender​​identity,​​gender,​​genetic​​information,​​nationality,​​national​​origin,​​race​​or​​ethnicity,
​religion,​ ​medical​ ​condition,​ ​marital​ ​status,​ ​sex,​ ​sexual​ ​orientation,​ ​or​ ​any​ ​combination​ ​of​ ​those
​characteristics,​ ​or​​on​​the​​basis​​of​​a​​person’s​​association​​with​​a​​person​​or​​group​​with​​one​​or​​more​​of
​these​ ​actual​ ​or​ ​perceived​ ​characteristics​ ​or​ ​any​ ​combination​ ​of​ ​those​ ​characteristics​ ​in​ ​any​ ​OSCA
​program​ ​or​ ​activity.​​1​ ​Unlawful​ ​discrimination​ ​includes,​ ​but​ ​is​ ​not​ ​limited​ ​to,​ ​noncompliance​ ​with
​Education Code sections 243(a) or 244.

​2. ​Complaints​ ​alleging​ ​a​ ​violation​ ​of​ ​state​ ​or​ ​federal​ ​law​ ​or​ ​regulation​ ​governing​ ​the​ ​following
​programs:

​● ​Accommodations for Pregnant, Parenting or Lactating Students;
​● ​Adult Education Programs;
​● ​Career Technical and Technical Education and Training Programs;
​● ​Child Care and Development Programs;
​● ​Migrant Child Education Programs;
​● ​Consolidated Categorical Aid Programs;
​● ​Every Student Succeeds Act;
​● ​Education or graduation of Students in Foster Care, Students who are Homeless, former Juvenile

​Court Students now enrolled in a public school, Migratory Children and Children of Military
​Families;

​● ​Regional Occupational Centers and Programs; and/or
​● ​School Safety Plans

​3. ​Complaints​ ​alleging​ ​that​ ​a​ ​student​ ​enrolled​ ​in​ ​a​ ​public​ ​school​ ​was​ ​required​ ​to​ ​pay​ ​a​ ​pupil​ ​fee​ ​for
​participation in an educational activity as those terms are defined below.

​a. ​“Educational​ ​activity”​ ​means​ ​an​ ​activity​ ​offered​ ​by​ ​the​ ​charter​ ​school​ ​that​ ​constitutes​ ​an
​integral​ ​fundamental​ ​part​ ​of​ ​elementary​ ​and​ ​secondary​​education,​​including,​​but​​not​​limited
​to, curricular and extracurricular activities.

​1​ ​In accordance with 5 C.C.R. 4611, employment discrimination complaints are not subject to the UCP.​

​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​ ​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES​ ​P​​AGE​​1​​of 10​

13



​b. ​“Pupil​ ​fee”​ ​means​ ​a​ ​fee,​ ​deposit​ ​or​ ​other​ ​charge​ ​imposed​ ​on​ ​students,​ ​or​ ​a​ ​student’s
​parents/guardians,​ ​in​ ​violation​ ​of​​Education​​Code​​section​​49011​​and​​Section​​5​​of​​Article​​IX
​of​ ​the​ ​California​ ​Constitution,​ ​which​ ​require​ ​educational​ ​activities​ ​to​ ​be​ ​provided​ ​free​ ​of
​charge​ ​to​ ​all​ ​students​ ​without​ ​regard​ ​to​ ​their​ ​families’​ ​ability​ ​or​ ​willingness​ ​to​ ​pay​ ​fees​ ​or
​request​​special​​waivers,​​as​​provided​​for​​in​​Hartzell​​v.​​Connell​​(1984)​​35​​Cal.3d​​899.​​A​​pupil
​fee includes, but is not limited to, all of the following:

​i. ​A​​fee​​charged​​to​​a​​student​​as​​a​​condition​​for​​registering​​for​​school​​or​​classes,​​or​​as​​a
​condition​ ​for​ ​participation​ ​in​ ​a​ ​class​ ​or​ ​an​ ​extracurricular​ ​activity,​ ​regardless​ ​of
​whether the class or activity is elective or compulsory or is for credit.

​ii. ​A​ ​security​ ​deposit,​ ​or​ ​other​ ​payment,​ ​that​ ​a​ ​student​ ​is​ ​required​ ​to​ ​make​ ​to​ ​obtain​ ​a
​lock,​ ​locker,​ ​book,​​class​​apparatus,​​musical​​instrument,​​uniform​​or​​other​​materials​​or
​equipment.

​iii. ​A​​purchase​​that​​a​​student​​is​​required​​to​​make​​to​​obtain​​materials,​​supplies,​​equipment,
​or uniforms associated with an educational activity.

​c. ​Complaints​ ​regarding​ ​pupil​ ​fees,​ ​local​ ​control​ ​and​ ​accountability​ ​plans​ ​(“LCAP”),​ ​or
​noncompliance​ ​with​ ​Education​ ​Code​ ​sections​ ​243​ ​or​ ​244​ ​only,​ ​may​ ​be​ ​filed​ ​anonymously
​(without​ ​an​ ​identifying​ ​signature)​ ​if​ ​the​​complaint​​provides​​evidence​​or​​information​​leading
​to evidence to support an allegation of noncompliance with the respective applicable laws.

​d. ​If​ ​OCSA​ ​finds​ ​merit​ ​in​ ​a​ ​pupil​ ​fees​ ​complaint,​ ​or​ ​the​ ​California​ ​Department​ ​of​ ​Education
​(“CDE”)​ ​finds​ ​merit​ ​in​ ​an​ ​appeal,​ ​OCSA​ ​shall​ ​provide​ ​a​ ​remedy​ ​to​ ​all​ ​affected​ ​students,
​parents/guardians​ ​that,​​where​​applicable,​​includes​​reasonable​​efforts​​by​​OCSA​​to​​ensure​​full
​reimbursement​ ​to​ ​all​ ​affected​ ​students​ ​and​ ​parents/guardians,​ ​subject​ ​to​ ​procedures
​established through regulations adopted by the state board.

​e. ​Nothing​ ​in​ ​this​ ​Policy​ ​shall​ ​be​ ​interpreted​ ​to​ ​prohibit​ ​solicitation​ ​of​ ​voluntary​​donations​​of
​funds​​or​​property,​​voluntary​​participation​​in​​fundraising​​activities,​​or​​OCSA​​and​​other​​entities
​from​​providing​​student​​prizes​​or​​other​​recognition​​for​​voluntarily​​participating​​in​​fundraising
​activities.

​4. ​Complaints​ ​alleging​ ​noncompliance​ ​with​ ​the​ ​requirements​ ​governing​ ​the​ ​Local​ ​Control​ ​Funding
​Formula​ ​(“LCFF”)​ ​or​ ​LCAP​ ​under​​Education​​Code​​sections​​47606.5​​and​​47607.3,​​as​​applicable.​​If
​OCSA​ ​adopts​ ​a​ ​School​ ​Plan​ ​for​ ​Student​ ​Achievement​ ​in​ ​addition​ ​to​ ​its​ ​LCAP,​ ​complaints​ ​of
​noncompliance​ ​with​ ​the​ ​requirements​​of​​the​​School​​Plan​​for​​Student​​Achievement​​under​​Education
​Code sections 64000, 64001, 65000, and 65001 shall also fall under this Policy.

​Complaints​ ​alleging​ ​noncompliance​ ​regarding​ ​child​ ​nutrition​ ​programs​ ​established​ ​pursuant​ ​to​ ​Education​
​Code​ ​sections​ ​49490-49590​ ​no​ ​longer​ ​fall​ ​under​ ​the​ ​UCP.​ ​Instead,​ ​they​ ​are​ ​governed​ ​by​ ​Title​ ​7,​ ​Code​​of​
​Federal​​Regulations​​(“C.F.R.”)​​sections​​210.19(a)(4),​​215.1(a),​​220.13(c),​​225.11(b),​​226.6(n),​​and​​250.15(d)​
​and Title 5, California Code of Regulations (“C.C.R.”) sections 15580 - 15584.​

​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​ ​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES​ ​P​​AGE​​2​​of 10​

14



​Complaints​​alleging​​noncompliance​​regarding​​special​​education​​programs​​established​​pursuant​​to​​Education​
​Code​ ​sections​ ​56000-56865​ ​and​ ​59000-59300​ ​no​ ​longer​​fall​​under​​the​​UCP.​​Instead,​​they​​are​​governed​​by​
​the procedures set forth in 5 C.C.R. sections 3200-3205 and 34 C.F.R. sections 300.151-300.153.​

​OCSA​​acknowledges​​and​​respects​​every​​individual’s​​right​​to​​privacy.​​Unlawful​​discrimination,​​harassment,​
​intimidation​ ​or​ ​bullying​ ​complaints​ ​shall​ ​be​ ​investigated​ ​in​ ​a​ ​manner​ ​that​ ​protects​ ​(to​ ​the​ ​greatest​ ​extent​
​reasonably​ ​possible​ ​and​ ​as​ ​permitted​ ​by​​law)​​confidentiality​​of​​the​​parties,​​including​​but​​not​​limited​​to​​the​
​identity​​of​​the​​complainant,​​and​​maintains​​the​​integrity​​of​​the​​process.​​OCSA​​cannot​​guarantee​​anonymity​​of​
​the​ ​complainant.​ ​This​ ​includes​ ​keeping​ ​the​ ​identity​ ​of​ ​the​ ​complainant​ ​confidential.​​However,​​OCSA​​will​
​attempt​ ​to​ ​do​ ​so​ ​as​ ​appropriate.​ ​OCSA​ ​may​ ​find​ ​it​ ​necessary​ ​to​ ​disclose​ ​information​ ​regarding​ ​the​
​complaint/complainant​ ​to​ ​the​ ​extent​ ​required​ ​by​ ​law​ ​or​ ​necessary​ ​to​ ​carry​ ​out​ ​the​ ​investigation​ ​or​
​proceedings,​ ​as​ ​determined​ ​by​ ​the​ ​OCSA​ ​Assistant​ ​Principal​ ​of​ ​Student​ ​Supervision​ ​or​ ​designee​ ​on​ ​a​
​case-by-case basis. OCSA shall ensure that complainants are protected from retaliation.​

​Compliance Officer​

​The​​Board​​of​​Trustees​​designates​​the​​following​​compliance​​officer​​to​​receive​​and​​investigate​​complaints​​and​
​to ensure OCSA’s compliance with law:​

​OCSA Assistant Principal of Student Supervision​
​1010 North Main Street, Santa Ana, CA 92701​

​714.560.0900 ext. 6402​
​abbe.levine@ocsarts.net​

​The​ ​OCSA​ ​Assistant​ ​Principal​ ​of​ ​Student​ ​Supervision​ ​or​​designee​​shall​​ensure​​that​​the​​compliance​​officer​
​designated​ ​to​ ​investigate​ ​complaints​ ​are​ ​knowledgeable​ ​about​ ​the​ ​laws​ ​and​ ​programs​ ​for​ ​which​ ​they​ ​are​
​responsible.​​The​​compliance​​officer​​may​​have​​access​​to​​legal​​counsel​​as​​determined​​by​​the​​OCSA​​Assistant​
​Principal of Student Supervision or designee.​

​Should​ ​a​ ​complaint​ ​be​ ​filed​ ​against​ ​the​ ​OCSA​ ​Assistant​ ​Principal​ ​of​​Student​​Supervision,​​the​​compliance​
​officer for that case shall be the OCSA Chief Operations Officer.​

​Notifications​

​The​​OCSA​​Assistant​​Principal​​of​​Student​​Supervision​​or​​designee​​shall​​make​​available​​copies​​of​​this​​Policy​
​free of charge. The annual notice of this Policy may be made available on OCSA’s website.​

​OCSA​​shall​​annually​​provide​​written​​notification​​of​​OCSA’s​​UCP​​to​​employees,​​students,​​parents/guardians,​
​advisory committees, private school officials or representatives, and other interested parties as applicable.​

​The​​annual​​notice​​shall​​be​​in​​English.​​When​​necessary,​​under​​Education​​Code​​section​​48985,​​if​​fifteen​​(15)​
​percent​ ​or​ ​more​ ​of​​the​​students​​enrolled​​in​​OCSA​​speak​​a​​single​​primary​​language​​other​​than​​English,​​this​
​annual notice will also be provided to​​the parent/guardian​​of any such students in their primary language.​

​The annual notice shall include the following:​

​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​ ​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES​ ​P​​AGE​​3​​of 10​

15

mailto:abbe.levine@ocsarts.net


​1. ​A​ ​list​ ​of​ ​the​ ​types​ ​of​ ​complaints​ ​that​ ​fall​ ​under​ ​the​ ​scope​ ​of​ ​the​ ​UCP​ ​and​ ​the​ ​state​ ​and​ ​federal
​provisions that govern complaints regarding child nutrition programs and special education programs.

​2. ​A​ ​statement​ ​clearly​ ​identifying​ ​any​ ​California​ ​State​ ​preschool​​programs​​that​​OCSA​​is​​operating​​as
​exempt​ ​from​ ​licensing​ ​pursuant​ ​to​ ​Health​ ​and​ ​Safety​ ​Code​ ​section​ ​1596.792(o)​​and​​corresponding
​Title​ ​5​ ​health​ ​and​ ​safety​ ​regulations,​ ​and​ ​any​ ​California​ ​State​ ​preschool​ ​programs​ ​that​ ​OCSA​ ​is
​operating pursuant to Title 22 licensing requirements.

​3. ​A​ ​statement​ ​that​ ​OCSA​ ​is​ ​primarily​ ​responsible​ ​for​ ​compliance​ ​with​ ​federal​ ​and​ ​state​ ​laws​ ​and
​regulations.

​4. ​A​ ​statement​ ​that​ ​a​ ​student​ ​enrolled​ ​in​ ​a​ ​public​ ​school​ ​shall​ ​not​ ​be​ ​required​ ​to​ ​pay​ ​a​ ​pupil​ ​fee​ ​for
​participation in an educational activity.

​5. ​A​ ​statement​ ​identifying​ ​the​ ​title​ ​of​ ​the​ ​compliance​ ​officer,​ ​and​ ​the​ ​identity(ies)​ ​of​ ​the​ ​person(s)
​currently occupying that position, if known.

​6. ​A​ ​statement​ ​that​ ​if​ ​a​ ​UCP​ ​complaint​ ​is​​filed​​directly​​with​​the​​CDE​​and​​the​​CDE​​determines​​that​​it
​merits​​direct​​intervention,​​the​​CDE​​shall​​complete​​an​​investigation​​and​​provide​​a​​written​​decision​​to
​the​ ​complainant​ ​within​ ​sixty​ ​(60)​ ​calendar​ ​days​​of​​receipt​​of​​the​​complaint,​​unless​​the​​parties​​have
​agreed​ ​to​ ​extend​ ​the​ ​timeline​ ​or​ ​the​ ​CDE​ ​documents​ ​exceptional​ ​circumstances​ ​and​ ​informs​ ​the
​complainant.

​7. ​A​​statement​​that​​the​​complainant​​has​​a​​right​​to​​appeal​​OCSA’s​​decision​​to​​the​​CDE​​by​​filing​​a​​written
​appeal​​within​​thirty​​(30)​​calendar​​days​​of​​the​​date​​of​​OCSA’s​​Decision,​​except​​if​​OCSA​​has​​used​​its
​UCP to address a complaint that is not subject to the UCP requirements.

​8. ​A​​statement​​that​​a​​complainant​​who​​appeals​​OCSA’s​​decision​​on​​a​​UCP​​complaint​​to​​the​​CDE​​shall
​receive​​a​​written​​appeal​​decision​​within​​sixty​​(60)​​calendar​​days​​of​​the​​CDE’s​​receipt​​of​​the​​appeal,
​unless​ ​extended​ ​by​ ​written​ ​agreement​ ​with​ ​the​ ​complainant​ ​or​ ​the​ ​CDE​ ​documents​ ​exceptional
​circumstances and informs the complainant.

​9. ​A​ ​statement​ ​that​ ​if​ ​OCSA​ ​finds​ ​merit​ ​in​ ​a​ ​UCP​ ​complaint,​ ​or​ ​the​ ​CDE​ ​finds​ ​merit​ ​in​ ​an​ ​appeal,
​OCSA​​shall​​take​​corrective​​actions​​consistent​​with​​the​​requirements​​of​​existing​​law​​that​​will​​provide
​a remedy to the affected student and/or parent/guardian as applicable.

​10. ​A​​statement​​advising​​the​​complainant​​of​​any​​civil​​law​​remedies​​that​​may​​be​​available​​under​​state​​or
​federal​ ​discrimination,​ ​harassment,​ ​intimidation​ ​or​ ​bullying​ ​laws,​ ​if​ ​applicable,​ ​and​ ​of​ ​the​ ​appeal
​pursuant to Education Code section 262.3.

​11. ​A statement that copies of OCSA’s UCP shall be available free of charge.

​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​ ​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES​ ​P​​AGE​​4​​of 10​

16



​Procedures​

​The​ ​following​ ​procedures​ ​shall​ ​be​ ​used​ ​to​ ​address​ ​all​ ​complaints​ ​which​ ​allege​ ​that​ ​OCSA​ ​has​ ​violated​
​federal​ ​or​ ​state​​laws​​or​​regulations​​enumerated​​in​​the​​section​​“Scope,”​​above.​​The​​compliance​​officer​​shall​
​maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions for at least three (3) calendar years.​

​All​ ​parties​ ​named​ ​shall​ ​be​ ​notified​ ​when​ ​a​ ​complaint​ ​is​ ​filed,​ ​when​ ​a​ ​complaint​ ​meeting​ ​or​ ​hearing​ ​is​
​scheduled, and when a decision or ruling is made.​

​● ​Step 1: Filing of Complaint

​Any​ ​individual,​ ​including​ ​a​ ​person’s​ ​duly​ ​authorized​ ​representative​ ​or​ ​an​ ​interested​ ​third​ ​party,​ ​public​
​agency,​ ​or​ ​organization​ ​may​ ​file​ ​a​​written​​complaint​​of​​alleged​​noncompliance​​or​​unlawful​​discrimination,​
​harassment, intimidation or bullying pursuant to this Policy.​

​A​​complaint​​of​​unlawful​​discrimination,​​harassment,​​intimidation​​or​​bullying​​may​​be​​filed​​by​​an​​individual​
​who​​alleges​​that​​that​​individual​​has​​personally​​suffered​​unlawful​​discrimination,​​harassment,​​intimidation​​or​
​bullying​ ​or​ ​by​ ​one​ ​who​ ​believes​ ​any​ ​specific​ ​class​ ​of​ ​individuals​ ​has​ ​been​ ​subjected​ ​to​ ​unlawful​
​discrimination,​​harassment,​​intimidation​​or​​bullying,​​or​​by​​a​​duly​​authorized​​representative​​who​​alleges​​that​
​an​ ​individual​ ​student​ ​has​ ​been​ ​subjected​ ​to​ ​discrimination,​ ​harassment,​ ​intimidation,​ ​or​ ​bullying.​ ​An​
​investigation​ ​of​ ​alleged​ ​unlawful​ ​discrimination,​ ​harassment,​ ​intimidation​ ​or​ ​bullying​ ​shall​ ​be​​initiated​​by​
​filing​ ​a​ ​complaint​ ​no​ ​later​ ​than​ ​six​ ​(6)​ ​months​ ​from​ ​the​ ​date​ ​the​ ​alleged​ ​discrimination,​ ​harassment,​
​intimidation​ ​or​ ​bullying​ ​occurred,​ ​or​ ​the​ ​complainant​ ​first​ ​obtained​ ​knowledge​ ​of​ ​the​ ​facts​ ​of​ ​the​ ​alleged​
​discrimination,​ ​harassment,​ ​intimidation​ ​or​ ​bullying​ ​unless​ ​the​ ​time​ ​for​ ​filing​ ​is​ ​extended​ ​by​ ​the​ ​OCSA​
​Assistant​​Principal​​of​​Student​​Supervision​​or​​designee,​​upon​​written​​request​​by​​the​​complainant​​setting​​forth​
​the​ ​reasons​ ​for​ ​the​ ​extension.​ ​Such​ ​extension​ ​by​ ​the​ ​OCSA​ ​Assistant​ ​Principal​ ​of​ ​Student​ ​Supervision​​or​
​designee​​shall​​be​​made​​in​​writing.​​The​​period​​for​​filing​​may​​be​​extended​​by​​the​​OCSA​​Assistant​​Principal​​of​
​Student​ ​Supervision​ ​or​ ​designee​ ​for​ ​good​ ​cause​ ​for​ ​a​ ​period​ ​not​ ​to​ ​exceed​ ​ninety​ ​(90)​ ​calendar​ ​days​
​following​ ​the​ ​expiration​ ​of​ ​the​ ​six-month​ ​time​ ​period.​ ​The​ ​OCSA​ ​Chief​ ​Operations​ ​Officer​ ​shall​​respond​
​immediately upon receipt of a request for extension.​

​All​ ​other​ ​complaints​ ​under​ ​this​ ​Policy​ ​shall​ ​be​ ​filed​ ​not​ ​later​ ​than​ ​one​ ​(1)​ ​year​ ​from​ ​the​ ​date​ ​the​​alleged​
​violation​​occurred.​​For​​complaints​​relating​​to​​the​​LCAP,​​the​​date​​of​​the​​alleged​​violation​​is​​the​​date​​on​​which​
​the OCSA Board of Trustees approved the LCAP or the annual update was adopted by OCSA.​

​The​​complaint​​shall​​be​​presented​​to​​the​​compliance​​officer​​who​​shall​​maintain​​a​​log​​of​​complaints​​received,​
​providing each with a code number and date stamp.​

​Complaints​ ​filed​ ​pursuant​ ​to​ ​this​ ​Policy​ ​must​ ​be​ ​in​ ​writing​ ​and​ ​signed.​ ​A​ ​signature​ ​may​ ​be​ ​handwritten,​
​typed​ ​(including​ ​in​ ​an​ ​email)​ ​or​ ​electronically​ ​generated.​ ​Only​ ​complaints​ ​regarding​ ​pupil​​fees,​​LCAP,​​or​
​noncompliance​​with​​Education​​Code​​section​​243​​or​​244​​may​​be​​filed​​anonymously​​as​​set​​forth​​in​​this​​Policy.​
​If​ ​a​ ​complainant​ ​is​ ​unable​ ​to​ ​put​ ​a​ ​complaint​​in​​writing​​due​​to​​conditions​​such​​as​​a​​disability​​or​​illiteracy,​
​OCSA staff shall assist the complainant in the filing of the complaint.​

​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​ ​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES​ ​P​​AGE​​5​​of 10​

17



​● ​Step 2: Mediation

​Within​ ​three​ ​(3)​ ​business​ ​days​ ​of​ ​receiving​ ​the​ ​complaint,​ ​the​ ​compliance​ ​officer​ ​may​ ​informally​ ​discuss​
​with​ ​the​ ​complainant​ ​the​ ​possibility​ ​of​ ​using​ ​mediation.​ ​If​ ​the​ ​complainant​ ​agrees​ ​to​ ​mediation,​ ​the​
​compliance officer shall make arrangements for this process.​

​Before​ ​initiating​ ​the​ ​mediation​ ​of​ ​an​ ​unlawful​ ​discrimination,​ ​harassment,​ ​intimidation​ ​or​ ​bullying​
​complaint,​ ​the​ ​compliance​ ​officer​​shall​​ensure​​that​​all​​parties​​agree​​to​​make​​the​​mediator​​a​​party​​to​​related​
​confidential information.​

​If​​the​​mediation​​process​​does​​not​​resolve​​the​​complaint​​to​​the​​satisfaction​​of​​the​​complainant,​​the​​compliance​
​officer shall proceed with the investigation of the complaint.​

​The​​use​​of​​mediation​​shall​​not​​extend​​OCSA’s​​timelines​​for​​investigating​​and​​resolving​​the​​complaint​​unless​
​the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time.​

​● ​Step 3: Investigation of Complaint

​The​ ​compliance​ ​officer​ ​is​ ​encouraged​ ​to​ ​hold​ ​an​ ​investigative​ ​meeting​ ​within​ ​five​ ​(5)​ ​business​ ​days​ ​of​
​receiving​​the​​complaint​​or​​an​​unsuccessful​​attempt​​to​​mediate​​the​​complaint.​​This​​meeting​​shall​​provide​​an​
​opportunity for the complainant and/or the complainant’s representative to repeat the complaint orally.​

​The​ ​complainant​ ​and/or​ ​the​ ​complainant’s​ ​representative​ ​shall​ ​have​ ​an​ ​opportunity​ ​to​ ​present​ ​evidence​​or​
​information leading to evidence to support the allegations in the complaint.​

​A​ ​complainant’s​ ​refusal​ ​to​ ​provide​ ​the​ ​compliance​ ​officer​​with​​documents​​or​​other​​evidence​​related​​to​​the​
​allegations​ ​in​ ​the​ ​complaint,​ ​or​ ​a​ ​complainant’s​ ​failure​ ​or​ ​refusal​ ​to​ ​cooperate​ ​in​ ​the​ ​investigation​ ​or​ ​the​
​complainant’s​ ​engagement​ ​in​ ​any​ ​other​ ​obstruction​ ​of​ ​the​ ​investigation,​ ​may​ ​result​ ​in​​the​​dismissal​​of​​the​
​complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation.​

​OCSA’s​​refusal​​to​​provide​​the​​compliance​​officer​​with​​access​​to​​records​​and/or​​other​​information​​related​​to​
​the​​allegation​​in​​the​​complaint,​​or​​its​​failure​​or​​refusal​​to​​cooperate​​in​​the​​investigation​​or​​its​​engagement​​in​
​any​ ​other​ ​obstruction​ ​of​ ​the​ ​investigation,​ ​may​ ​result​ ​in​ ​a​ ​finding,​ ​based​ ​on​ ​evidence​ ​collected,​ ​that​ ​a​
​violation has occurred and may result in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant.​

​● ​Step 4:  Final Written Decision

​OCSA​​shall​​issue​​an​​investigation​​report​​(the​​“Decision”)​​based​​on​​the​​evidence.​​OCSA’s​​Decision​​shall​​be​
​in​ ​writing​ ​and​ ​sent​ ​to​ ​the​ ​complainant​ ​within​ ​sixty​ ​(60)​​calendar​​days​​of​​OCSA’s​​receipt​​of​​the​​complaint​
​unless​ ​the​ ​timeframe​​is​​extended​​with​​the​​written​​agreement​​of​​the​​complainant.​​OCSA’s​​Decision​​shall​​be​
​written in English and in the language of the complainant whenever feasible or as required by law.​

​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​ ​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES​ ​P​​AGE​​6​​of 10​

18



​The Decision shall include:​

​1. ​The findings of fact based on evidence gathered.

​2. ​The​ ​conclusion​ ​providing​ ​a​ ​clear​ ​determination​ ​for​ ​each​ ​allegation​ ​as​ ​to​ ​whether​ ​OCSA​ ​is​ ​in
​compliance with the relevant law.

​3. ​Corrective actions, if OCSA finds merit in the complaint and any are warranted or required by law.

​4. ​Notice​ ​of​​the​​complainant’s​​right​​to​​appeal​​OCSA’s​​Decision​​within​​thirty​​(30)​​calendar​​days​​to​​the
​CDE,​ ​except​ ​when​ ​OCSA​ ​has​ ​used​ ​its​ ​UCP​ ​to​ ​address​ ​complaints​ ​that​ ​are​​not​​subject​​to​​the​​UCP
​requirements.

​5. ​Procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal.

​If​​an​​employee​​is​​disciplined​​as​​a​​result​​of​​the​​complaint,​​the​​Decision​​shall​​simply​​state​​that​​effective​​action​
​was​​taken​​and​​the​​employee​​was​​informed​​of​​OCSAs​​expectations.​​The​​Decision​​shall​​not​​give​​any​​further​
​information as to the nature of the disciplinary action except as required by applicable law.​

​Appeals to the CDE​

​If​ ​dissatisfied​ ​with​ ​the​ ​Decision,​ ​the​ ​complainant​ ​may​ ​appeal​ ​in​ ​writing​ ​to​ ​the​ ​CDE​ ​within​ ​thirty​ ​(30)​
​calendar​ ​days​ ​of​​receiving​​the​​Decision.​​The​​appeal​​shall​​be​​accompanied​​by​​a​​copy​​of​​the​​complaint​​filed​
​with​ ​OCSA​ ​and​ ​a​ ​copy​ ​of​ ​the​ ​Decision.​ ​When​ ​appealing​ ​to​ ​the​ ​CDE,​ ​the​ ​complainant​ ​must​ ​specify​ ​and​
​explain the basis for the appeal, including at least one of the following:​

​1. ​OCSA failed to follow its complaint procedures.

​2. ​Relative​ ​to​ ​the​ ​allegations​ ​of​ ​the​ ​complaint,​ ​OCSA’s​ ​Decision​ ​lacks​ ​material​ ​findings​ ​of​ ​fact
​necessary to reach a conclusion of law.

​3. ​The material findings of fact in OCSA’s Decision are not supported by substantial evidence.

​4. ​The legal conclusion in OCSA’s Decision is inconsistent with the law.

​5. ​In​ ​a​ ​case​ ​in​ ​which​ ​OCSA’s​ ​Decision​ ​found​ ​noncompliance;​ ​the​ ​corrective​ ​actions​​fail​​to​​provide​​a
​proper remedy.

​Upon​​notification​​by​​the​​CDE​​that​​the​​complainant​​has​​appealed​​the​​Decision,​​the​​OCSA​​Assistant​​Principal​
​of​ ​Student​ ​Supervision​ ​or​ ​designee​ ​shall​ ​forward​ ​the​ ​following​ ​documents​ ​to​ ​the​ ​CDE​ ​within​ ​ten​ ​(10)​
​calendar days of the date of notification:​

​1. ​A copy of the original complaint.

​2. ​A copy of the Decision.

​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​ ​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES​ ​P​​AGE​​7​​of 10​

19



​3. ​A​ ​copy​ ​of​ ​the​ ​investigation​ ​file,​ ​including​ ​but​ ​not​ ​limited​ ​to​ ​all​ ​notes,​ ​interviews,​ ​and​ ​documents
​submitted by the parties or gathered by the investigator.

​4. ​A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint.

​5. ​A copy of OCSAs complaint procedures.

​6. ​Other relevant information requested by the CDE.

​If​​the​​CDE​​determines​​the​​appeal​​raises​​issues​​not​​contained​​in​​the​​local​​complaint,​​the​​CDE​​will​​refer​​those​
​new​ ​issues​ ​back​ ​to​ ​OCSA​ ​for​ ​resolution​ ​as​ ​a​ ​new​ ​complaint.​ ​If​ ​the​ ​CDE​ ​notifies​​OCSA​​that​​its​​Decision​
​failed​ ​to​ ​address​ ​an​ ​allegation​ ​raised​ ​by​ ​the​ ​complaint​ ​and​ ​subject​ ​to​ ​the​ ​UCP​ ​process,​ ​OCSA​ ​will​
​investigate​ ​and​ ​address​ ​such​ ​allegation(s)​ ​in​ ​accordance​ ​with​ ​the​ ​UCP​ ​requirements​​and​​provide​​the​​CDE​
​and​​the​​appellant​​with​​an​​amended​​Decision​​addressing​​such​​allegation(s)​​within​​twenty​​(20)​​calendar​​days​
​of​​the​​CDE’s​​notification.​​The​​amended​​Decision​​will​​inform​​the​​appellant​​of​​the​​right​​to​​separately​​appeal​
​the amended Decision with respect to the complaint allegation(s) not addressed in the original Decision.​

​Within​ ​thirty​ ​(30)​ ​calendar​ ​days​ ​of​ ​the​ ​date​ ​of​ ​the​ ​CDE’s​ ​appeal​ ​Decision​ ​pursuant​ ​to​ ​5​ ​C.C.R.​ ​section​
​4633(f)(2)​ ​or​​(3),​​either​​party​​may​​request​​reconsideration​​by​​the​​State​​Superintendent of Public Instruction​
​(“SSPI”)​ ​or​​the​​SSPI’s​​designee.​​The​​request​​for​​reconsideration​​shall​​specify​​and​​explain​​the​​reason(s)​​for​
​contesting​ ​the​ ​findings​​of​​fact,​​conclusions​​of​​law,​​or​​corrective​​actions​​in​​the​​CDE’s​​appeal​​Decision.​​The​
​SSPI​ ​will​ ​not​ ​consider​ ​any​ ​information​ ​not​ ​previously​ ​submitted​ ​to​ ​the​ ​CDE​​by​​a​​party​​during​​the​​appeal​
​unless​ ​such​ ​information​ ​was​ ​unknown​ ​to​​the​​party​​at​​the​​time​​of​​the​​appeal​​and,​​with​​due​​diligence,​​could​
​not​​have​​become​​known​​to​​the​​party.​​Pending​​the​​SSPI’s​​response​​to​​a​​request​​for​​reconsideration,​​the​​CDE​
​appeal Decision remains in effect and enforceable, unless stayed by a court.​

​The​ ​CDE​ ​may​ ​directly​ ​intervene​ ​in​ ​the​ ​complaint​ ​without​ ​waiting​ ​for​ ​action​ ​by​ ​OCSA​ ​when​ ​one​ ​of​ ​the​
​conditions​​listed​​in​​5​​C.C.R.​​section​​4650​​exists,​​including​​but​​not​​limited​​to​​cases​​in​​which​​through​​no​​fault​
​of​​the​​complainant,​​OCSA​​has​​not​​taken​​action​​within​​sixty​​(60)​​calendar​​days​​of​​the​​date​​the​​complaint​​was​
​filed with OCSA.​

​Complaints​ ​alleging​ ​noncompliance​ ​with​ ​Education​ ​Code​ ​section​ ​243​ ​or​ ​244​ ​may​ ​be​ ​filed​ ​with​ ​the​ ​SSPI​
​directly,​ ​and​ ​the​ ​SSPI​ ​may​ ​directly​ ​intervene​ ​without​ ​waiting​ ​for​ ​an​ ​investigation​ ​by​ ​OCSA.​ ​The​
​complainant​ ​shall​ ​present​ ​the​ ​SSPI​ ​with​ ​evidence​ ​that​ ​supports​ ​the​ ​basis​ ​for​ ​the​ ​direct​ ​filing​ ​and​ ​why​
​immediate action is necessary.​

​Civil Law Remedies​

​A​ ​complainant​ ​may​ ​pursue​ ​available​ ​civil​ ​law​ ​remedies​ ​outside​ ​of​ ​OCSA’s​ ​complaint​ ​procedures.​
​Complainants​ ​may​ ​seek​ ​assistance​ ​from​ ​mediation​ ​centers​ ​or​ ​public/private​ ​interest​ ​attorneys.​ ​Civil​ ​law​
​remedies​ ​that​​may​​be​​imposed​​by​​a​​court​​include,​​but​​are​​not​​limited​​to,​​injunctions​​and​​restraining​​orders.​
​For​​unlawful​​discrimination​​complaints​​arising​​under​​state​​law,​​however,​​a​​complainant​​must​​wait​​until​​sixty​
​(60) ​calendar​ ​days​ ​have​ ​elapsed​ ​from​ ​the​ ​filing​ ​of​ ​an​ ​appeal​ ​with​ ​the​ ​CDE​ ​before​ ​pursuing​ ​civil​ ​law
​remedies.​ ​The​ ​waiting​ ​period​ ​does​ ​not​ ​apply​ ​to​ ​injunctive​ ​relief​ ​and​ ​is​ ​applicable​ ​only​ ​if​ ​OCSA​ ​has
​appropriately, and in a timely manner, apprised the complainant of their right to file a complaint.

​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​ ​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES​ ​P​​AGE​​8​​of 10​

20



​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​U​​NIFORM​ ​C​​OMPLAINT​​P​​OLICY​ ​AND​​P​​ROCEDURES

​U​​NIFORM​​C​​OMPLAINT​​P​​ROCEDURE​ ​F​​ORM

​Last Name: __________________________________________ First Name/MI: _______________________________​

​Student Name (if applicable): _____________________________________ Grade: _______ Date of Birth: ____________​

​Street Address/Apt.#: _________________________________________________________________________________​

​City: _____________________________________________ State: _______________ Zip Code: __________________​

​Home Phone: _____________________ Cell Phone: ______________________ Work Phone: ______________________​

​School/Office of Alleged Violation: ______________________________________________________________________​

​For allegation(s) of noncompliance, please check the program or activity referred to in your complaint, if applicable:​

​�​ ​Adult Education Programs​ ​�​ ​Every Student Succeeds Act​ ​�​ ​School Plans for School​
​Achievement​

​�​ ​Career Technical and Technical​
​Education and Training​

​�​ ​Local Control Funding Formula/ Local​
​Control and Accountability Plan​

​�​ ​Child Care and Development​
​Programs​

​�​ ​Migrant Child Education Programs​ ​�​ ​Pupil Fees​

​�​ ​Consolidated Categorical Aid​
​Programs​

​�​ ​Regional Occupational Centers and​
​Programs​

​�​ ​Pregnant, Parenting, or Lactating​
​Students​

​�​ ​Education or graduation of Students in Foster Care,​​Students who are Homeless, former Juvenile Court Students now​
​enrolled in a Public School, Migratory Children and Children of Military Families​

​For​ ​allegation(s)​ ​of​ ​unlawful​ ​discrimination,​ ​harassment,​ ​intimidation​ ​or​ ​bullying,​ ​please​ ​check​ ​the​ ​basis​ ​of​ ​the​
​unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying described in your complaint, if applicable:​

​Age​

​Ancestry​

​Color​

​Disability​​(Mental or Physical)

​Ethnic Group Identification​

​Gender / Gender Expression /​
​Gender Identity​

​Genetic Information​

​Immigration Status/Citizenship​

​Marital Status​

​Medical Condition​

​Nationality / National Origin​

​Race or Ethnicity​

​Religion​

​Sex​​(Actual or Perceived)

​Sexual Orientation​​(Actual or
​Perceived)​

​Based​​on​​association​​with​​a​​person​
​or​​group​​with​​one​​or​​more​​of​​these​
​actual or perceived characteristics​

​1. ​Please​ ​give​ ​facts​ ​about​​the​​complaint.​​Provide​​details​​such​​as​​the​​names​​of​​those​​involved,​​dates,​​whether​​witnesses
​were present, etc., that may be helpful to the complaint investigator.

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​ ​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES​ ​P​​AGE​​9​​of 10​ 21



___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

​2. ​Have​​you​​discussed​​your​​complaint​​or​​brought​​your​​complaint​​to​​any​​OCSA​​personnel?​ ​If​​you​​have,​​to​​whom​​did​​you
​take the complaint, and what was the result?

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

___________________________________________________________________________________________________​

​3. ​Please provide copies of any written documents that may be relevant or supportive of your complaint.

​I have attached supporting documents.​ ​�​ ​Yes​ ​�​ ​No

​Signature: ___________________________________________________________________ Date: __________________​

​Mail complaint and any relevant documents to the Compliance Officer:​

​OCSA Assistant Principal of Student Supervision​
​1010 North Main Street, Santa Ana, CA 92701​

​714.560.0900 ext. 6402​
​abbe.levine@ocsarts.net​

​O​​RANGE​ ​C​​OUNTY​ ​S​​CHOOL​ ​OF​ ​THE​ ​A​​RTS
​UNIFORM COMPLAINT POLICY AND PROCEDURES​ ​P​​AGE​​10​​of 10​

22

mailto:abbe.levine@ocsarts.net

	12.18.25 Regular Board Meeting Agenda
	ADD MINUTES HERE
	25-26 OCSA Monthly Staffing Report
	Oct 25 OCSA Financial Packet
	Inc Stmnt Monthly
	Income Stmnt 12 mos
	Bal Sht
	Cash Flow

	12.18.25 OCSA Uniform Complaint Policy and Procedures



